

Toorak East Malvern Hockey Club

Toorak East Malvern Hockey Club Inc Annual Report 2020

TEM is proudly supported by

















Contents

PRESIDENT'S REPORT 2020	1
TREASURER'S REPORT	4
MEN'S REPORT	5
WOMEN'S REPORT	6
JUNIORS' REPORT	7
MEN'S MASTERS REPORT	10
INDOOR REPORT	11
WOMEN'S MASTERS REPORT	12
INCLUSION AND DIVERSITY	13
HAWTHORN MALVERN HOCKEY CENTRE (HMHC) ANNUAL REPORT TO TEM HOCKEY CLUB	14
COMMUNICATIONS	16
SOCIAL	16
MARKETING & FUND RAISING	16
CONSTANTIAN CLUB	16
THANK YOU FOR YOUR EFFORTS	18
AWARD WINNERS AND OTHER HONOURS	19



President's Report 2020

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused 2020 to be a year unlike any other. Government imposed rules which introduced the concept of "social distancing" and compelling a severe restriction of human interaction meant that TEM activities, including training, ceased in mid-March. While there was a period in June and July where some limited training was conducted, again within government imposed strict rules, there was a total ban on TEM activities re imposed from 2 August. As I write, restrictions are still in place, but it seems they will shortly be relaxed sufficiently to permit the playing of hockey under normal rules.

Thus, 2020 has been an extremely challenging year.

Prior to the March 'lock down', we had:

- another successful summer program with intraclub, the HV summer competition and the combined Hawthorn/TEM Monday night Masters' competition; and
- numerous teams participating in HV's Indoor Competitions with our Under 13 Girls winning the Indoor Club Championships.

As a result of the March 'lock down', TEM's attention was directed towards two main areas:

- devising new ways to engage with our members; and
- assimilating and complying with the plethora of new regulations, imposed on Clubs and HMHC, emanating from two levels of government.

Engagement with members took a number of forms.



First, TEMpo was reinstated. In the past, TEM produced regular simple newsletters which were distributed by post to members throughout the winter. With the rise of electronic forms of communication, production of TEMpo ceased some years ago. As a response to the pandemic, TEMpo has been reinstated and seven editions have been circulated. Topics covered included information regarding Club activities, detailed interviews with Club personalities, inclusion and diversity, coping with the challenges of lockdown and the early history of our Club.

Second, via various audio visual or electronic means, TEM or TEM members have conducted exercise classes, drills sessions, challenged each other to maintain fitness, held pet shows, supported multiple charities and provided birthday wishes.



Thank you to all who have contributed.

The new covid-19 related regulations required hard graft on the part of a few to work out how to translate them into something workable and, just as importantly, have systems in place which would stand scrutiny if something went wrong. Fortunately, nothing went wrong.

Thank you to those who undertook the hard graft.

The Future

We have re-commenced our Juniors program with the TEM Academy commencing earlier this month. This has involved about 90 juniors in the 12-17 age range.

As for senior hockey, playing according to normal rules should soon be possible, but with some precautions.

Will we have a normal season in 2021? We just don't know.

Finance

The Committee took the decision not to charge winter fees this year despite having spent over \$52,000 in preparation for the season.

However, the Club asked for donations and our Members responded magnificently with approx. \$25,000 in donations which have significantly reduced the loss we would otherwise been facing.

These donations, together with the reserves the Club had at the commencement of season mean that we are able to absorb the loss and most importantly we remain in a sound financial position.

Retirements

Victor Romagosa, our Coaching Director for the last 5 years, has stepped down and returned to his native Spain. Victor has had a significant impact on TEM during his time with us including the development of our Club culture, the recruiting and coaching of our Juniors and coaching Senior teams. He will be sadly missed, and we wish Victor and his family all the best in the future.

Carol McKenzie resigned in September as one of the TEM appointees to the HMHC board having been a member for four years.

Oenone Ritman has stepped down as secretary after three years in the role. Her replacement will be elected at the Annual General Meeting.

Volunteers

TEM is run by volunteers. They are its lifeblood. They fill the positions and take on the many roles which make TEM run. I thank you all for your efforts.

TEM's Committee consisting of Greg Koster, David Bevan, Christie Freeman, Bruce Cook, Oenone Ritman, Leesa Needham, Pip Dudley, Sam Hill, Penny Senior, Alan Leary, Mary Lofthouse and Pene Amor have given generously



of their time to run TEM. Much of what they do is unnoticed, but TEM cannot operate without them. I thank them for their efforts and support.

Finally, thank you the ordinary members, for your continued support and encouragement of me and TEM. TEM exists for you, but without your support TEM would not exist.

Michael Norbury

President November 2020



Treasurer's Report

As with everything else in 2020, the year has proven challenging financially.

The key points from the 2019-2020 financials are:

- We experienced a loss of \$1,405. However, this amount is deceptive because it includes a non cash distribution from Hawthorn Malvern Hockey Centre of \$20,047
- This means that the loss from activities managed by the Club was \$21,452
- The major factors in this were:
 - We incurred expenses in excess of \$53,000 in preparation for the 2020 winter season which did not proceed, and
 - Our decisions not to charge any membership fees for the 2020 winter season and to offer full
 refunds to members who had paid fees before the season was cancelled. (We are aware of
 instances where other Clubs have levied fees for the season and or that have only offered a partial
 refund of fees that were paid.)
- Without a doubt, the financial highlight of the year was the very generous support of our members who made donations to the Club excess of \$26,000. To each and everyone of you, please accept the thanks of the whole of the Club.
- Our bank balance has decreased from \$128,435 to \$93,693 (some of which is already ear marked for other purposes such as the payment of invoices).

However, most important outtake from this is that <u>if there is a further outbreak of covid-19 next season, TEM still has enough cash reserves to cover a loss similar to that experienced this year.</u>

Bruce Cook Treasurer



Men's Report

This season had the hallmarks of being one of the most prosperous in many years, with the squads eager to build on the foundations of a very successful 2019 season. Unfortunately, we only got as far as the second pre-season game in 2020 due to the pandemic holding Victoria within its grip for much of the winter.

It would be easy to write off this year, leaving the 2020 "non-season" with an asterisk next to it when we file it away for the history books. However, doing that would be a serious disservice to the achievements the men's section has made over the last 12 months. Indeed, while there are not many match results to speak of, there is plenty of progress to discuss that happened off the pitch.

Over the Christmas period, the club welcomed Josh Pollard who was appointed as the first team head coach. Soon after, we also welcomed back Cam Belza who took the reserve team coach role. With them came a brandnew start for the club, with the two combining to develop a fresh approach for training and matches. The few months we had before the shutters came down saw the entire section learning new drills, skills, and tactics under the new coaches. While we only got a taste of the fruits of that labor, what we did see was enormously encouraging. It is a testament to the players, Josh, and Cam that everyone enthusiastically opted into the new approach.

As we all know, our State had a rough time of it during winter. With envious eyes across the border, our time together became shorter until, eventually, we went into a second lock down and would need to wait until November to pick up our sticks again. However, until we were told otherwise, the club continued to prepare and train while we could. With many restrictions imposed on us, the non-contact sessions we had scheduled could have been a disaster. However, despite the fears of dwindling attendance, those session were exceptionally well attended. Indeed, we even saw new faces appear and join the club – despite not being able to shake hands with their new teammates. As weeks turned into months, and cases rose, it became increasingly clear that there would be no season, yet we kept turning up on Tuesdays, Thursdays, and Saturdays. For me, this was the proof that our section does not just play for the matches on a Saturday, but rather to be a part of something bigger. Well, that or the emergence of "car park beers" ritual. A huge thank you should go out to the coaches; Josh, Cam, Cam MacPhie, Hugh McLaughlin, Greg Koster and Matt Hooper who made those training sessions as entertaining as they were.

While we spent our time at home, the men's section made an enormous effort to keep everyone engaged. Joining in on a zoom call maybe routine for many us now, but I suspect that the weekly "Tuesday Night Live" will have been the highlight of the week for some of the chaps. We also had a get together on the Anniversary of the Adam Bailey Testimonial (the PL reserve grand final), a constant steam of sweaty selfies and barrage of messages and calls between teammates to break up our time on the sofa. A special mention should go to a few chaps who went the extra mile to keep us together and engaged; Hugh and Cambo McLaughlin, Braden Pitcher, Sam Hill, Will Harty, Nick Sutcliffe and John Nicolosi.

2021 will be all the better for the hardships we endured this year. We have a great plan for the season, we will enter all of our teams again and we'll better for the time we've had apart and (more importantly) together this year.

David Bevan

Men's VP November 2020



Women's Report

The stats for Season 2020 for the Womens Division represent a season that has literally been like no other ever before. Preseason started with optimism and energy, and from January, our TEM ladies were energetic in their approach to the year. Starting with a team building session with the Mens division, we saw rock climbing feats that showed a level of fitness and determination that was inspiring and pointed to an exciting season to come. The first two practice matches against Footscray and Yarra Valley saw wins for the PL and PLR ladies, and more reason to be excited. Then just as the other grades were about to really swing into training, the news of the Covid-19 pandemic struck.

So while we had seven teams entered (PL, PLR, Pennant A, B, E, F and Metro) no official matches were played. Melbourne and Victoria entered two extended periods of lockdown and all further training was cancelled. Melbournians were confined to their homes for 23 hours a day, and could only leave within a 5km lockdown. Nonetheless the TEM spirit reigned supreme! TEM ladies stayed connected through ZOOM fitness sessions, quiz nights, and the now famous 'Sweaty selfies'. We got involved in a charity walk/run event, did virtual work outs together, shared recipes from our living rooms and even got to meet TEM pets; dogs, cats, goldfish and chickens! We also heard from many of our dedicated club members who were front line healthcare workers - you are inspirational!

Returning to hockey involved more than just picking up our sticks. As well as maintaining safe distances, for the first time ever we had to be conscious of disinfecting equipment and preventing the spread of infection, and while these constraints meant that it wasn't quite 'hockey as we know it', it was great to see so many members participating. Despite not getting to play an official game, I'd like to thank our coaches Ian Kleinschmidt, Ben Lord, Leanne Downer, Cam Macphie, Sam Hill, Claire Douglass, and Tony Dudley for their commitment and ability to find innovate ways to keep 'socially distanced' hockey going during this very strange time. I'd also like to thank the leadership team (Darci Kleinschmidt, Bonnie Bonness, Emily Butler, Jordi McCullough, Sophia O'Beirne and Jen Eager) who have all gone out of their way to help, be it in sourcing bulk hand sanitiser or checking in on other club members; it is appreciated. I also want to thank Penny Senior who has kept the whole show rolling this year, and whose warmth and enthusiasm epitomises our TEM values.

The cohesiveness and care shown by our community was something to behold and I will be forever grateful to all those people who reached out to others during a time that was stressful for all. As summer approaches, there is lots of reason to be optimistic for season 2021, but still some uncertainty. I wish everyone a happy Summer with friends and family, and hope that 2021 will be perhaps a little less 'unprecedented'.

Christie Freeman

Women's Vice-President November 2020



Juniors' Report

We started off 2020 running some development sessions in January for our 15-18 year olds and then some more in February for our 11-14 year olds. These were well received as a prelude to our junior training which started in March. We only had a few weeks of training before lockdown hit and everything was put on hold.

I'd like to thank the following coaches who did start training our junior teams this year, until we were shut down:

Cam McKenzie, Luke Westmore, Pat Cassidy. Juli Alonso, Alex Patterson, Will Karaffa, Simon Bowles, Krissy Crew, Claire Douglas, Mackenzie Hughes, Tom Drury, Charlotte Ritman, Steve Eager, Paula Diaz Oliva, Georgina Kennedy, Faith Cullinan, Stella Hammet and Jenny Eager.

Although no competition happened this year, the junior committee continued to plan for 2021 and beyond. We managed to put together some further development sessions for players of all skill levels, (U12-U16) under the name 'TEM Academy' which ran throughout November. Hugh McLaughlin did a great job of planning these sessions and sourcing a number of elite coaches including HC Melbourne players as well as a few who had been in Australian squads. It was also supported by some great home grown TEM coaches. These sessions were open to players from other clubs as well as TEM members. We had an awesome response and it booked out within a week. We were limited to numbers due to covid restrictions but we managed to have 90 kids on both H1 and H2 on Thursday nights. The feedback from the players and parents for this program has been extremely positive which is always good to hear!

Thank you to all the fantastic coaches we had come along for theses sessions:

TEM Coaches:

Claire Douglas, Cam McKenzie, Will Karraffa, Sam Wagg, Emily Tulloch, Nick Stutcliffe, Josh Pollard, Charles Norbury and Emilio Fernandez.

Friends of TEM Coaches:

James Webster, Ash Utri, Oilvia Colasurdo, Anna Moore, Ciara Utri, Hugh Hamilton, Carly JamesBevan Fernandez and Bella Colasurdo.

During November and December we have also managed to organise a 5 week Summer 7s competition with four other clubs; PH/STK, Bayside, SUHC and Mentone. It is a fun, 7-a-side half pitch competition which the kids are loving. We have 6 teams entered from U12 - U16 and each age group is playing at a different venue with HMHC hosting the U14 comp. on a Tuesday evening.

We have many activities planned for the 2021 season.

U16 Graduates

Unfortunately a number of players didn't get a chance to play their last junior season this year but I'd like to acknowledge their contribution to the junior section of our club over the years. We look forward to seeing you all playing seniors next year!

Aine Tuohy Jack Meehan Alice O'Brien Jade Frame Asha Newstead James Coleman Clea Robinson John Robbins Eli Perlberg Joshua Mac **Eloise Auwardt** Kaitlyn Connolly **Emily Prater** Lachlan Bushby **Emma Watkins** Lachlan Thomas Rex Angliss **Ewan Hutter** Georgina Kennedy Shayla Jansz

Hope Pengilly Sophie Hillemacher

Hugo Bonollo Will Sudano

State Representatives

Congratulations to the following juniors who were selected for Victoria and played in the Indoor State Championships early this year.

U13 Indoor State Team

Amelia Dethridge Niveda Thomas Eliza Grey

Umpire- Annabel Kenndey

U15 State Team (silver medal)

Shayla Jansz Asha Newstead

U18 Indoor State Team (bronze medal)

Annabel Kenndey Eugenie Rickard
Asha Newstead Luke Westmore
Charlotte Ritman Ola Marshall
Claire Freeman Tom Brightling

Emily Butler

U18 Australian Indoor Squad- Ola Marshall, Tom Brightling, Charlotte Ritman

Congratulations to the following TEM juniors who were selected in the State outdoor teams this year. Although the tournaments were cancelled, TEM is very proud of you all!

OUTDOOR

U15 State Team

Lucy Dunlop

Ellie Jarrett

Alice Brown

Ella Paice

Jonny Spincer

U15 Development Side

Niveda Thomas

U18 State Team

Emily Butler

Ola Marshall

U18 Development Side

Mackenzie Hughes Hope Pengilly

Charlotte Ritman

Olivia Wood

Nick Spincer

Goodbye to Victor

In June this year we said goodbye to Victor Romagosa, our club Coaching Director for the past 5 years, who went back to his homeland of Spain with his family. Victor was a wonderful asset and made a great contribution to our club and especially the junior section over the years. He was passionate about junior development and recruitment as well as working with our young coaches. I'd like to thank him for all his hard work, passion and advice. We are forever grateful for his contribution to our club (including his delicious paellas!!)

I'd like to finish up by also thanking Pip Dudley, Dwayne Pengilly, Hugh McLaughlin and Sandy Marshall for all their help with the junior section this year. They have done a great amount of work and I really value their input and support. Together we are looking forward to a BIG 2021 for TEM Juniors!

Leesa Needham

Junior's VP November 2020



Men's Masters Report

HMHC Summer Masters Competition

Summer 2019/20 saw the continuation of the HMHC Summer Masters Competition scheduled to run as 15 rounds on Monday nights from October through to March. However, the final 3 rounds were cancelled due to the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic.

The competition had six "equalised" teams comprised of both women and men players from Hawthorn, TEM and other clubs, with skills ranging from beginners to A-level.

Despite refunding partial fees due to the curtailed season, the competition generated a net profit of \$5,208 which was shared between the two clubs on a player pro-rata basis.

Men's Masters Winter Season

The five teams entered for the 2020 Men's Masters season were Men's Open: A and BSE, and Men's Masters: 45A, 45DSE and 50B. The "Men's Open" teams were essentially the previous 35A and 35C teams. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the season did not commence. We are looking forward to the 2021 season where we hope to enter the same teams.

Alan Leary

November 2020



Indoor Report

In 2019/2020 we continued to work on building strength, skills and knowledge of indoor hockey and entered teams across all Hockey Victoria competitions. Our player numbers are still increasing, and we've been really excited to welcome players from other clubs to join us for indoor. It continues to be immensely rewarding to watch how indoor builds and consolidates a range of skills and abilities that all players are able to transfer to outdoor hockey.

Our activities in 2019/2020 included over 130 players registered to play in the following competitions:

Boys and Girls Indoor Club Championships – U13, U15 and U18 age groups
Mixed Shield – U13, U15 and U18 age groups
Mixed Pennant – U11 age group
Girls – U15 age group
Women and Men A and B grades
Mixed Masters

We're extremely grateful and thankful for the support and expertise of many club members who have contributed as team managers and coaches and are without doubt the backbone of our very successful and established indoor program.

In 2021 we will be looking forward to the exciting development of a dedicated indoor hockey facility at the State Netball and Hockey Centre. We're confident that Hockey Victoria will have a full program ready to go when the doors open in Term 3, 2021.

Pip Dudley Indoor Coordinator November 2020



WOMEN's Masters Report

In 2020, there was one team entered in the Women's 35+ BE division. As a result of the Covid pandemnic, the winter season did not commence. It is proposed to enter a team in the Women's 35+ BE division for 2021. We are looking forward to season 2021 commencing.

Pene Amor Women's Masters 2020



INCLUSION AND DIVERSITY

At the beginning of 2020 we were offered the opportunity to take part in a partnership project which aims to help clubs attract and support a more diverse membership and encourage participation and leadership from everyone. Local organisations partnering in the program are Access Health and Community, City of Boroondara, Manningham City Council, Leisure Networks and Women's Health East. The program consisted of six workshops held each month from February- July facilitated by a trainer experienced in sports development.

We also benefited by assistance to complete an inclusion assessment of our club, that has since been developed into a practical action plan. We now have ongoing support from a Health Promotion Practitioner at Access Health and Community to implement our action plan, as well as ongoing support from the Boroondara Council.

Jenny Eager and I participated in the workshops, and we had valuable support from Leesa Needham and Penny Senior throughout the year. As we come together in a face to face setting at the club in 2021, we're looking forward to working on the action plan and engaging a broad section of the club in our activities both on and off the field.

Pip Dudley Inclusion Ambassador November 2020



Hawthorn Malvern Hockey Centre (HMHC) Annual Report to TEM Hockey Club

HMHC is a joint operation with the 2 major tenants at the Hockey Centre in Auburn Rd Hawthorn, being the Toorak East Malvern Hockey Club (TEM) and the Hawthorn Hockey Club (HHC). A third sub tenant Carey Baptist Grammar School (Carey) also are a major user of the facilities.

TEMC and HHC each appoint 3 Directors to HMHC, which is tasked with operating the 2 grounds, H-1 and H-2, and the pavilion including the kiosk.

2020 Overview

2019 was a highly successful year for HMHC with the ground surface on H-1 replaced, new LED lighting on both grounds, the Queen's Birthday long weekend Senior Country Championships (SSC), the Junior State Championships (JSC) in July and a Sikhs Easter national hockey tournament, and a Federal grant of \$500,000 towards the Pavilion upgrade.

Little did we know what 2020 had in stall for not only the Centre but the entire community with the global COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, all activity was put on hold for the Hockey community, with virtually no games played for the best part of the year, resulting in the centre mostly unused.

With the federal assistance through Job keeper the staff employed at the centre were able to be retained with only Harry attending to keep up essential maintenance. With the exception of some minor damage to goals through use by members of the public, unfortunately Council regulations do not allow for tighter security, the centre remains in good order.

Financials

With little use of the facility income of the centre was considerably down, as were the outgoings, and with the federal assistance received the centre posted a small profit for the year.

Club House Redevelopment

Although there was not much action on the field, HMHC took this an opportunity to drive forward on the plans to redevelop the centre. HMHC, with the assistance of the \$500,000 federal grant, is in the final stages of approvals and building quotations and hopes to get the construction of the redeveloped centre underway at the end of January 2021 with a completion date of June 2021.

The new centre will have a large open space for meetings and functions with full viewing of H1, a multipurpose room on the ground level, a new larger modern canteen with facilities for clubs use, two outdoor decks, a lift, updated toilets and showers with more disability access areas and more storage for clubs. This will make HMHC and the Auburn road complex one of the premier hockey facilities in the state.





HMHC Committee

HMHC is represented on behalf of TEM by Rob MacPhie, Miranda Ellis and Tony Dudley with HHC representatives Ross Blair-Holt (Chairman rotating), Chris Legge (Treasurer) and Russell Kilroe-Smith.

Miranda Ellis joined the HMHC Committee in October 2020 replacing Carol Mckenzie who has been a valued member of the HMHC for a number of years. On behalf of the HMHC we would like to thank Carol for her dedication and efforts to help keep the centre operational.

Chris Legge (Treasurer) has also steeped off the Committee in November and HHC are finding a suitable replacement. With Chris's departure the committee has decided to engage the services of a local bookkeeper with a transition underway. HMHC would also like to thank Chris for his service as treasurer and bookkeeper for many years.

Thanks

A special thanks to Linda and Grenville, to Harry and Norm for their continued service in what has been an unusual year.

Tony Dudley

HMHC Director November 2020

Communications

Summary

This season, the engagement with our social media channels from our TEM community and beyond has greatly helped keep all members and friends of TEM connected and updated.

Facebook posts this season predominantly focused on promoting the following key areas:

- Fitness
- Togetherness
- Communication
- celebrations

Instagram was used as a supporting platform that aimed to feature the fantastic action photos taken by Stu Westmore and to run a phantom winter season 2020.

Social

Given the Covid pandemic, there has been limited ability to hold any social events. However, as can been seen from the reports above, there was some opportunity for a team building session between the Men's division and the Women's division with rock climbing and trampolining.

Hopefully season 2021 will provide us with more opportunities to socialise!

Marketing & Fund Raising

A major issue for the Club continues to be our inability to identify somebody to formally fill the critically important role of Marketing Officer. Our efforts in this area are crucial if we are to continue with all of our programs and to try and keep the membership fees at a reasonable level.

However, we have been very fortunate that Nicole Pitcher, with the assistance from Braden Pitcher, has continued to support the Club in this vital area and perform many of the tasks that would normally have been undertaken by the Marketing Officer. We are extremely grateful to Nicole and Braden for their efforts which have been crucial to us yet again throughout 2020.

Highlights of the year include our continued support by the sponsorships Nextgen AV Rentals, Histolab, Hawthorn Hotel, Just Hockey, Team Apparel, The Dog Dazzlers and TAC through its "Towards Zero" program.

Thanks also to for their support during the year to Capital Mutual Insurance Brokers.

We would also like to re-iterate our thanks to all sponsors – your support of TEM is greatly appreciated.

Constantian Club

Under normal circumstances, it is not possible for individuals to obtain a tax deduction when donating money to sporting Clubs. The exception to this is when donations are made through the Australian Sports Foundation.

The Constantian Club has been created to take advantage of the opportunities available to TEM to raise funds through the ASF.

Though the ASF and the Constantian Club, tax deductible donations can be made to TEM for the purpose of "raising funds to provide assistance to players, umpires and coaches in the areas of travel, equipment and coaching clinics and for the collection, preservation and display of historical club memorabilia."

These donations can be made publicly or anonymously.

Thanks to Fred Ball, Leesa Needham and Bruce Cook for their stewardship of the Constantian Club.

I would also like to wish the committee all the best for the year ahead.

Oenone Ritman

Secretary November 2020



Thank You For Your Efforts

It takes the efforts of many people to put our teams onto the field and to organise our various events and programs. Without this support the Club would just not function. We'd like to thank the following people for their time and energy supporting the Club in various capacities during the year. If we've made a mistake or you have been overlooked from this list, please accept our sincere apologies.

Committee	Constantian Club
Alan Leary	Bruce Cook
Bruce Cook	Fred Ball
Christie Freeman	Leesa Needham
David Bevan	
Leesa Needham	Website, Photos, Video & Multimedia
Greg Koster	Ben Spincer
Mary Lofthouse	Bronte Hough
Michael Norbury	Hugh McLaughlin
Oenone Ritman	Leesa Needham
Pene Amor	Stuart Westmore
Penny Senior	Perri Dudley
Pip Dudley	
Sam Hill	Website, Photos, Video & Multimedia
	Ben Spincer
НМНС	Bronte Hough
Carol McKenzie	Hugh McLaughlin
Grenville Dawson	Leesa Needham
Harry Buring	Stuart Westmore
Linda Dawson	Perri Dudley
Miranda Davies	
Rob MacPhie	Fitness
Tony Dudley	Emily Farrow
	Emily Tulloch
Historical & Player Records	John Nicolosi
Alan Leary	
Bruce Cook	Inclusion Ambassadors
Michael Norbury	Jenny Eager
Paul Lofthouse	Pip Dudley
MPIO	
Chris MacPhie	
Coaches – Indoor & Summer (2019/20)	
Hugh McLaughlin	
Trugit Miceaugitiiti	
Managers & Co-ordinators – Indoor & Summer (2019/20)	
Alan Leary	

Coaches – Winter /TEM Academy	
Alex Patterson	Josh Pollard
Ben Lord	Juli Alonso
Cam Belza	Krissy Crew
Cam Macphie	Luke Westmore
Cam McKenzie	Mackenzie Hughes
Charles Norbury	Nick Sutcliffe
Charlotte Ritman	Pat Cassidy
Claire Douglas	Paula Diaz Oliva
Emilio Fernandez	Sam Wagg
Emily Tulloch	Simon Bowles
Faith Cullinan	Stella Hammet
Georgina Kennedy	Steve Eager
Hugh McLaughlin	Tom Drury
lan Kleinschmidt	Will Karaffa
Jenny Eager	

Award Winners and Other Honours

Due to Covid-19, there were no award winners or other honours presented during the year.

Premiership Players

Indoor Club Championships - u13 Girls

Daisy Caink
Ella Croxall
Frankie Dawkins

Amelia Dethridge Captain

Chloe Dunlop Eliza Grey Zoe Kleinig Nienke Koene

Peter Koene Coach

Lulu Olesen Charlotte Richards Niveda Thomas

Shabu Thomas Manager

TEM Games Records

(see note 1)

TEM sources its games records from the official match reports of Hockey Victoria, which unfortunately are incomplete. The tables below are from these records and notes regarding their "completeness" follow.

Combined Totals (Top 30)

NAME	SURNAME	Seniors	Masters (Veterans)	Total
IVAIVIL	JORIVAIVIL	see note 2	see note 4	
MARY	LOFTHOUSE	729	95	824
CAMERON	MACPHIE	617	133	750
PETER	HOUGH see notes 2 & 3	659	0	659
MATTHEW	HOOPER	472	112	584
ROBERT	MACPHIE see notes 2 & 3	448	124	572
MICHAEL	NORBURY	332	226	558
PHILIP	BURCHARDT see notes 2 & 3	417	137	554
LEESA	NEEDHAM	539	8	547
PALMA	CASONATO	394	143	537
STUART	MACPHIE	434	91	525
ANDREW	NEEDHAM	441	78	519
BILL	BEARDER	403	106	509
FIONA	HODGES (NORLING)	500	0	500
KIM	DAVIE (SNOWDEN)	463	23	486
DEANNE	DAVIS (SULLIVAN)	399	77	476
GREG	KOSTER	356	103	459
JOEL	LEONARD	328	126	454
JOE	HOUGH see notes 2 & 3	436	0	436
KAREN	GIBSON	426	0	426
CHRISTINE	GRAVEN (BURMAN)	386	37	423
GRENVILLE	DAWSON	410	0	410
JENNY	EAGER	329	56	385
DAMIAN	HAUGH	291	90	381
FIONA	TROISE (BEARD)	375	1	376
JOHANNA	BOWDEN (MACEY)	368	3	371
CHARLES	NORBURY	365	0	365
STUART	HAMILTON	75	287	362
ALAN	LEARY	0	349	349
KAREN	BUSSELL	328	19	347
EVAN	JEWELL	343	0	343

NOTES

NOTE 1	Games records are main Hockey Victoria (and predecessors) winter competitions only
NOTE 2	Senior Men's games are only complete for 1983 and 1989 onwards. See also note 3.
NOTE 3	Estimated games 1971-1982 and 1984-1988
NOTE 4	Men's Masters games from 2003 onwards and Women's Masters games are from 2013 onwards



For a complete listing see www.temhockey.com/gamesrecords

Representative Honours

Congratulations to the following people who were selected in representative sides in 2020. Unfortunately, due to the covid-19 pandemic some of these events did not proceed and these events are shown in italics

(in alphabetical order by Family Name)

First	Family	Age	Team	Tour/Event	Comments
Tom	Brightling	u21	ACT	National Indoor Championships	
Tom	Brightling	u18	ACT	National Indoor Championships	Captain
Tom	Brightling	u18	Australia	u18 Indoor Squad	
Alice	Brown	u15	Victoria	National Championships	
Emily	Butler	u18	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Emily	Butler	u18	Victoria	National Championships	
Amelia	Dethridge	u13	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Amelia	Dethridge	u15	Victoria Development Team	National Championships	
Leanne	Downer	over 60	Australia	World Cup (Cape Town, South Africa)	
Lucy	Dunlop	u15	Victoria	National Championships	
Barry	Eager	over 75	Australia	World Cup (Tokyo, Japan)	train on
Claire	Freeman	u18	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Eliza	Grey	u13	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Mackenzie	Hughes	u18	Victoria Development Team	National Championships	
Shayla	Jansz	u15	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Ellie	Jarratt	u15	Victoria	National Championships	
Will	Karaffa	u21	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Annabel	Kennedy	u18	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Steve	Macumber	over 40	Australia	World Cup (Notthingham, United Kingdom)	
Oliver	Marshall	u18	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Oliver	Marshall	u18	Australia	u18 Indoor Squad	
Oliver	Marshall	u18	Victoria	National Championships	
Hugh	McLaughlin	Open	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Asha	Newstead	u15	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Asha	Newstead	u18	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Harriett	Ochsenbein	u21	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Ella	Paice	u15	Victoria	National Championships	
Норе	Pengilly	u15	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	train on



Toorak East Malvern Hockey Club

First	Family	Age	Team	Tour/Event	Comments
Норе	Pengilly	u18	Victoria Development Team	National Championships	
Eugenie	Rickard	u18	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Charlotte	Ritman	u18	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Charlotte	Ritman	u18	Australia	u18 Indoor Squad	train on
Charlotte	Ritman	u18	Victoria Development Team	National Championships	
Jonny	Spincer	u15	Victoria	National Championships	
Nick	Spincer	u18	Victoria Development Team	National Championships	
Enya	Talbot	u18	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Enya	Talbot	u18	Australia	u18 Indoor Squad	
Niveda	Thomas	u13	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Niveda	Thomas	u15	Victoria Development Team	National Championships	
Luke	Westmore	u18	Victoria	National Indoor Championships	
Olivia	Wood	u18	Victoria Development Team	National Championships	
Trish	Young	over 60	Australia	World Cup (Cape Town, South Africa)	
Trish	Young	over 35	Australia	World Cup (Notthingham, United Kingdom)	